
 

 

 

LICENSING SUB 

COMMITTEE  

 
Hollywood Bowl 

Woodside Leisure Park 

 
Thursday, 23rd January, 2014 

 
10.30 am 

 

Town Hall, Watford 
 
 
 
 

Publication date: 15 January 2014 
 

CONTACT 
If you require further information or you would like a copy of this agenda in another format, 
e.g. large print, please contact Jodie Kloss in Democracy and Governance on 01923 278376 
or by email to legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk . 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 
Welcome to this meeting.  We hope you find these notes useful. 
 
 
ACCESS 
 
Access to the Town Hall after 5.15 pm is via the entrance to the Customer Service Centre 
from the visitors’ car park. 
 
Visitors may park in the staff car park after 4.00 p.m. and before 7.00 a.m.  This is a Pay 
and Display car park; the current charge is £1.50 per visit. 
 
The Committee Rooms are on the first floor of the Town Hall and a lift is available. 
Induction loops are available in the Committee Rooms and the Council Chamber. 
 
 
FIRE/EMERGENCY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the 
instructions given by the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

• Do not use the lifts 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings 

• Go to the assembly point at the Pond and wait for further instructions 

• Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so. 
 
 
MOBILE PHONES 
 
Please ensure that mobile phones are switched off before the start of the meeting. 
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Copies of the minutes of this meeting are usually available seven working days following 
the meeting and can be found on the Council's website www.watford.gov.uk/meetings  
 
 
RECORDING OF MEETINGS 
 
An audio recording may be taken at this meeting for administrative purposes only. 



 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillors I Brown, J Brown, J Connal, K Crout, G Derbyshire, J Dhindsa, K Hastrick, 
P Jeffree, H Lynch, M Meerabux, M Mills, G Saffery, D Scudder, L Scudder and 
M Turmaine 
 
The Sub-Committee to comprise three councillors from those listed above. 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART A - OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 
1. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP/ ELECTION OF A CHAIR  

 

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 

3. APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF PREMISES LICENCE: HOLLYWOOD 
BOWL, WOODSIDE LEISURE PARK, NORTH ORBITAL ROAD, WATFORD 
WD25 7JZ (13/01475/LAPRE) (Pages 1 - 60) 

 
 This report asks the Sub-Committee to consider an application to vary the licence 

at the above premises following the receipt of representations. 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

PART A  
 

 

  

 

Report to: Licensing Sub-Committee 

Date of meeting: 23 January 2014 

Report of: Head of Community and Customer Services 

Title: Application for Variation of Premises Licence: 
Hollywood Bowl, Woodside Leisure Park, North Orbital Road, 
Watford WD25 7JZ 
13/01475/LAPRE 

 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1 An application for a variation of an existing Premises Licence has been 
received by The Original Bowling Company Ltd for Hollywood Bowl, 
Woodside Leisure Park, North Orbital Road, Watford WD25 7JZ. Sixteen 
valid representations have been received from local residents as interested 
parties. 
 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS  

 
2.1 That the Licensing Sub-Committee determines whether to grant the application 

(amended as appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives) as set 
out in the report. 
 

 
 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact: 
Austen Young, Assistant Licensing Officer 
Telephone 01923 278476, email: austen.young@watford.gov.uk  
 
Report approved by: Alan Gough, Head of Community and Customer 
Services 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



 
3.0 APPLICATION 

 
3.1 Type of authorisation applied for 

Variation to Premises Licence by The Original Bowling Company Ltd 
 

3.2 Description of premises 
The premises are a ten-pin bowling centre. 
 
The premises would qualify as an ‘other entertainment venue’ (as defined in 
policy LP1 of Watford Borough Council’s Licensing Policy). 
 
The premises would qualify as being in a ‘leisure or shopping area’ (as 
defined in policy LP2 of Watford Borough Council’s Licensing Policy). 
 

3.3 A location plan of the premises is attached as appendix 1. 
 
A layout plan of the premises is attached as appendix 2. Due to the size of 
the plan, this appendix will be available to view as a hard copy during the 
meeting. 
 

3.4 Licensable activities 
 

Licensable activity  Permitted now Subject to 
variation 

Plays   

Films � � 

Indoor sporting events � � 

Boxing or wrestling entertainment   

Live music   

Recorded music �  

Performances of dance   

Anything of a similar description to 
live or recorded music or dance 

  

Provision of late night refreshment � � 

Sale by retail of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises 

� � 

Sale by retail of alcohol for 
consumption off the premises 

� � 

  
3.5 Hours 

 
The proposed hours for licensable activities and opening are detailed in the 
following tables: 
 

 

Page 2



 
 Existing 

hours for 
licensable 
activities * 

Existing 
hours for sale 

of alcohol 

Proposed 
hours for 
licensable 
activities 

Proposed 
hours for sale 

of alcohol 

Monday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 No change No change 

Tuesday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 No change No change 

Wednesday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 No change No change 

Thursday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 10:00 - 01:00 10:00 - 01:00 

Friday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 10:00 - 01:00 10:00 - 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 23:30 10:00 - 01:00 10:00 - 01:00 

Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 10:00 - 22:30 No change No change 
 

 Existing 
opening 
hours 

Proposed 
opening hours 

Monday 10:00 - 00:30 No change 

Tuesday 10:00 - 00:30 No change 

Wednesday 10:00 - 00:30 No change 

Thursday 10:00 - 00:30 10:00 - 01:00 

Friday 10:00 - 00:30 10:00 - 01:00 

Saturday 10:00 - 00:30 10:00 - 01:00 

Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 No change 
 

  
* Exhibition of films; Indoor sporting events; Provision of late night 
refreshment.  
 
Recorded music is allowed 24 hours a day. 
 

3.6 Non Standard Timings 
 
The licensable activities of the exhibition of films, indoor sporting events, and 
the provision of late night refreshment already benefit from extensions until 
1am on the following days: 
 
Valentine’s Day (14 February) 
St David’s Day (1 March) 
Burn’s Night (25 January) 
Halloween (31 October) 
Good Friday 
Easter Monday 
Early May Bank Holiday 
Spring Bank Holiday 
Summer Bank Holiday 
Christmas Day 
New Year’s Day 
 
These licensable activities are also extended until 2am on the following 
days: 

Page 3



 
St Patrick’s Day (17 March) 
Christmas Eve 
Boxing Day 
27, 28 and 30 December 
 
On New Year’s Eve, all licensable activities are able to be provided 
throughout the night until the start of licensable activities on 1 January. 
These are the standard hours for New Year’s Eve as permitted by the 
previous legislation and which were carried over during transition from the 
Licensing Act 1964 to the Licensing Act 2003.  
 

4.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

4.1 The following background information is known about these premises: 
 

4.2 Designated premises supervisor 
The designated premises supervisor is Abigail Harris, who has been the 
DPS since 24 December 2012. 
 

4.3 Current licences held 
Premises licence 10/00884/LAPRE. The current holders, The Original 
Bowling Company Ltd, have held the licence since 16 August 2010. 
 
The current licence is attached as appendix 3. 
 

4.4 Closing date for representations 
27 December 2013 
 

4.5 Public notice published in newspaper 
As required under the Licensing Act 2003, this application has been 
advertised in the local newspaper (dated 6 December 2013) and also outside 
the premises.  
 

4.6 Visits and Enforcement action 
Concerns were raised by a member of the public in September 2012 that a 
reduction in door staff at the venue was resulting in an increase in under-age 
drinking and related anti-social behaviour. 
 
The premises was visited by the Licensing Enforcement Officer and nothing 
unusual was noted. As a precaution, the premises were flagged for 
monitoring by the Police and the Anti-Social Behaviour Action Group 
(ASBAG) in case of an increase in anti-social behaviour. However, ASBAG 
found that there is no empiric data to support additional concerns to the 
running of the premises, and no further incidents have been logged with the 
licensing authority. 
 
The last routine inspection was April 2011. No concerns were recorded. 
 
 

Page 4



5.0 PROMOTION OF LICENSING OBJECTIVES 
 

5.1 The application indicates that the applicant does not feel there is a need to 
take any additional steps in order to promote the licensing objectives. 
 
The existing licence and conditions which apply to this premises are 
attached at appendix 3 
 

6.0 RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES 
 

6.1  No representations have been received from any responsible authority.   
 

7.0 INTERESTED PARTIES 
 

7.1 The representations are attached at appendix 4 and all have been made 
available to the applicant. 
 

7.2 Reference 
letter 

Name Address Representative 
Body (Yes/No) 

Relevance to 
which licensing 
objective 

A Tim Williams 1 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

B John & Carol 
Welling 

2 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

C A & M Jackson 3 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

D Mr & Mrs 
Walker 

4 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

E Mr & Mrs 
Balakumar 

5 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

F Colin & 
Barbara 
Davies 

7 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

G S Stephens 9 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

H Mr & Mrs 
Brown 

11 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

Page 5



I Roger & Susan 
Osborn 

13 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

J Fiona 
Mannering 

15 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

K Michael 
Pargeter 

17 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

L J H Hallett 19 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

M Mr & Mrs 
Dearman 

23 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

N Stephen & 
Deborah Jones 

25 Lamb 
Close 

No Public 
nuisance 

O Gail D’Almaine 6 St 
Michaels 
Drive 

No Public 
nuisance 

P Monika & Kris 
Malkiewicz 

8 St 
Michaels 
Drive 

No Public 
nuisance 

 

7.3 The recurring themes throughout the representations are with regards to 
public nuisance arising from people leaving Woodside Leisure Park. This 
public nuisance is said to be an existing problem and there are concerns that 
this will worsen or extend later into the night should this variation be granted. 
 

8.0 POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 

8.1 The following provisions of the Licensing Act 2003 apply to this application: 
 

• Section 34 and 35 (Variation of licences): 
Section 34 details how a licence holder can make an application. 
Section 35 details how determinations will be made when an 
application is made under section 34. 
 

8.2 The following provisions of the Secretary of State’s guidance apply to this 
application: 
 

• Paragraphs 8.33 - 8.41: 
These paragraphs explain how steps should be taken to promote the 
licensing objectives. It is for the Sub-Committee to decide in light of 
this guidance whether the measures offered by the applicant are 
adequate and likely to promote the licensing objectives. It is equally 

Page 6



important to use the same measure when looking at any steps 
requested by a party making representation against an application. 

 

• Paragraph 10.12: 
This paragraph refers to there being no general presumption in favour 
of lengthening licensing hours and how a committee may act when 
they receive objections to an application.  
 

• Chapter 10: 
This chapter looks at best practice in relation to conditions that may 
be attached to a premises licence by the Sub-Committee, should they 
believe that these are necessary to promote the licensing objectives. 
Any additional conditions requested by the responsible authorities 
should be considered with reference to this chapter. 

 
8.3 The following paragraphs of the licensing authority’s statement of licensing 

policy apply to this application: 
 

• Policy LP1 (Premises Definitions): 
Under this policy the premises are defined as an “Other entertainment 
venue”. 

 

• Policy LP2 (Location and Operation of Premises): 
This policy sets out the approach to licensing premises when relevant 
representations are received, not withstanding that each application is 
considered on its own merits.  
 
Under this policy the premises are defined as being in a “Leisure or 
shopping area”.   

 

• Policy LP8 (Prevention of Public Nuisance): 
Under this policy the committee will consider any necessary measures 
to deal with the potential for public nuisance and/or anti-social 
behaviour where relevant representations have been received. 

 

• Policy LP11 (Representations against Applications): 
This policy recommends the type of information that should be 
included in a representation. It also explains how representations will 
be dealt with. 

 
8.4 The Committee is reminded of their duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998 to consider the crime and disorder implications of their decisions and 
the authority’s responsibility to co-operate in the reduction of crime and 
disorder in the Borough.   
 

8.5 The Committee is reminded that the Human Rights Act 1998 guarantees the 
right to a fair hearing for all parties in the determination of their civil rights.  
The Act also provides for the protection of property, which may include 
licences in existence, and the protection of private and family life. 
 

Page 7



9.0 RELEVANT TRADE OR OTHER GUIDANCE 
 

9.1 None 

10.0 CONDITIONS 
 

10.1 Members will be aware that an operating schedule forms part of the licensing 
process. This document outlines what activities are proposed, the opening 
hours, how the activities will be managed particularly in respect of the 
licensing objectives. The most critical part of the operating schedule is the 
steps taken by the applicant to promote the four licensing objectives. 
Applicants are always recommended to take careful consideration as to what 
is entered in this section as whatever is proposed will be translated as 
conditions on the licence. Applicants should give consideration to the local 
area and reflect this in their application. They should demonstrate an 
awareness of the local community, local crime and disorder issues, and 
environment. 
 

10.2 The applicant has not listed any additional steps in their operating schedule, 
and instead state that they will rely on their existing operating schedule and 
conditions. The conditions which currently apply to this premises are 
contained within the current licence which is attached as appendix 3. 
 

10.3 The licensing authority also has its own pool of model conditions. Officers 
would suggest the following condition as appropriate given the concerns 
raised in the representations with regards to customers making noise when 
leaving the premises: 
 

1. Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons 
to respect the needs of local residents and leave the area quietly. 

 
This does not restrict the Sub-Committee’s power to attach conditions from 
the pool (amended or otherwise) if they consider that they are appropriate, 
proportionate, justifiable, and within the applicant’s power to comply with. 
 

11.0 OFFICERS’ OBSERVATIONS 
 

11.1 The representations question the licensing authority’s classification of this 
premises as being in a ‘leisure or shopping area’ under policy LP2. This is of 
some importance because if the premises is said to fall within a residential 
area, Members may be able to use the policy to limit the hours to midnight if 
they feel it appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 
 

11.2 Previous reports for this premises, as well as for other operators within the 
leisure park, have defined this area as a ‘leisure or shopping area’, and 
officers do not feel that there have been any changes in circumstances to 
warrant considering this location as anything else. The premises is situated 
within a purpose-built leisure park with a cinema, restaurants, and children’s’ 
play centre providing leisure facilities. 
 

Page 8



11.3 The Sub Committee’s attention is drawn to paragraph 2.24 of the statutory 
guidance which states that licence-holders cannot be held responsible for 
the conduct of their patrons once they leave the premises. 
 

11.4 This is also reflected in the representations from residents; that once 
customers have left the Hollywood Bowl they are not in the control of the 
licensee. 
 

11.5 The representations refer to existing occasional disturbances. However, it is 
not stated if these disturbances are currently caused by patrons of 
Hollywood Bowl, and simply state that they are caused by people leaving the 
leisure park. Hollywood Bowl are one operator within this leisure park.  
 

11.6 The Sub-Committee may wish to note that the majority of representations 
are from one road, Lamb Close. That road is itself a cul-de-sac and 
Members may wish to consider the probability of customers leaving 
Hollywood Bowl late at night on foot before crossing over the A405 dual 
carriageway and down Sheepcot Lane in order to travel down Lamb Close 
unless, they are residents there themselves.   
  

11.7 Members should be wary about refusing this application or imposing 
conditions unless they are satisfied that there is a direct link between 
Hollywood Bowl and their patrons. and the disturbances mentioned in the 
representations. 
 

11.8 Paragraph 3.6 lists the non standard timings which are currently permitted by 
Hollywood Bowl’s existing licence. These hours have already been granted, 
and are not subject to change as a result of this application. The terminal 
hour for activities on these days is either 1am or 2am. There are no records 
to suggest that, if these extra hours have been utilised, there have been any 
incidents. 
 

11.9 Representations A through N are identical. Representations O and P are 
identical to each other, and are very similar to representations A through N. It 
is for the Sub-Committee to decide whether to treat each representation as 
an individual representation, or regard these as petitions with names and 
addresses and to place appropriate weight to them either individually or as a 
whole. The Sub-Committee is asked to state in its determination how it has 
approached this issue as it may be relevant in any future proceedings.   
 

11.10 The representations make reference to a previous application submitted by 
Hollywood Bowl in 2002 and an application submitted by Vue Cinemas in 
2012. They also raise concerns that, should this application be granted, 
other operators within the leisure park will apply to extend their hours.  
Members are reminded that each application is to be treated on its own 
merits, and therefore can not take into account previous applications by this 
premises or any other premises, or whether the grant of this application may 
result in other premises submitting applications to vary their existing 
licences. 
  

Page 9



11.11 The Sub-Committee are reminded that they have a duty to “have regard” to 
the Licensing policy but are not bound by it. However, should Members wish 
to depart from the policy then detailed reasons for this must be given as part 
of any decision. 
 

11.12 In light of the hours requested and representations received it is for Members 
to decide whether granting this application is likely to undermine the 
licensing objectives. 
 

 
 
Appendices 
 
Appendix 1 – map of the premises’ location 
Appendix 2 – plan of the premises (available to view at the hearing) 
Appendix 3 – copy of current Premises Licence 
Appendix 4 – representations from interested parties 
Appendix 5 – draft licence 
 
Background Papers 
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report.  
If you wish to inspect or take copies of the background papers, please contact 
the officer named on the front page of the report. 
 
Licensing Act 2003 
Amended guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (June 
2013)  
Licensing Act (Hearings) Regulations 2005 
Watford Borough Council Licensing Policy (November 2013)  
Watford Borough Council Pool of Model Conditions (March 2013) 
  
File Reference 
Hollywood Bowl 

Page 10



Appendix 1

´

©
 C

ro
w

n
 C

o
p
y
ri

g
h

t 
a

n
d
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 r
ig

h
ts

 2
0

1
3
 O

rd
n

a
n

c
e

 S
u
rv

e
y
 1

0
0
0

1
9
6

0
6
. 
A

e
ri

a
l 
P

h
o

to
 ©

 G
e

o
p

e
rs

p
e
c
ti
v
e
s
. 
H

is
to

ri
c
a
l 
©

 L
a

n
d

m
a

rk
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 G

ro
u

p
.

Date: 23/12/2013 1:2,500

0 0.03 0.06 0.09 0.12

Kms

Scale

P
age 11



P
age 12

T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Schedule 12 

 Part A Regulation 33,34 
 

Premises Licence 
 

Premises Licence Number 10/00884/LAPRE 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post 
Town, Post Code 
 

Hollywood Bowl 
Woodside Leisure Park 
North Orbital Road 
Watford 
WD25 7JZ 
 

Telephone number 01923 682929 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

 
From 24 December 2012 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of 
licensable activities 

 
On and off-premises alcohol sales Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat 10:00 - 23:30 
Exhibition of a Film Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat 10:00 - 00:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat 10:00 - 00:00 
Performance of Recorded Music Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat, Sun 00:00 - 00:00 
Late Night Refreshment Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat 23:00 - 00:00 
 
On and off-premises alcohol sales Sunday 10:00 - 22:30 
Exhibition of a Film Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Late Night Refreshment Sunday 23:00 - 00:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
Late Night Refreshment Valentine's Day 23:00 - 01:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film St David's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
Indoor Sporting Event St David's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
Late Night Refreshment St David's Day 23:00 - 01:00 

Page 13



 
Exhibition of a Film St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:00 
Indoor Sporting Event St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:00 
Late Night Refreshment St Patrick's Day 23:00 - 02:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film Other Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Other Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:00 
Late Night Refreshment Other Bank Holidays 23:00 - 01:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film Burns Night 10:00 - 01:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Burns Night 10:00 - 01:00 
Late Night Refreshment Burns Night 23:00 - 01:00 
 
Indoor Sporting Event Halloween 10:00 - 01:00 
Exhibition of a Film Halloween 10:00 - 01:00 
Late Night Refreshment Halloween 23:00 - 01:00 
 
Indoor Sporting Event Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:00 
Exhibition of a Film Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:00 
Late Night Refreshment Christmas Eve 23:00 - 02:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:00 
Indoor Sporting Event Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:00 
Late Night Refreshment Boxing Day 23:00 - 02:00 
 
Exhibition of a Film 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:00 
Indoor Sporting Event 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:00 
Late Night Refreshment 27, 28 and 30 December 23:00 - 02:00 
 
On 31 December the licensable activities may be conducted until the start of the licensable activities on 1 
January, and then to the conclusion of those licensable activities 
 

The opening hours of the premises 

 
Opening times of premises Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat 10:00 - 00:30 
Opening times of premises Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
Opening times of premises Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:30 
Opening times of premises St David's Day 10:00 - 01:30 
Opening times of premises St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:30 
Opening times of premises Other Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:30 
Opening times of premises Burns Night 10:00 - 01:30 
Opening times of premises Halloween 10:00 - 01:30 
Opening times of premises Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:30 
Opening times of premises Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:30 
Opening times of premises 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:30 

 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 

 
Alcohol is sold for consumption on and off the premises. 

 

Page 14



Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence 

 
The Original Bowling Company Ltd 
Focus 31 
North Wing 
Cleveland Road 
Hemel Hempstead 
HP2 7BW 
 
Tel: 01442 840200 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

 
05163827 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 
Abigail Harris 
 
 
 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 
Personal Licence Number: PER-0721 
Licensing Authority: Hertsmere Borough Council 

Page 15



Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

 
 
1 (1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:  

    
 (a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 

licence, or 
   

 (b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a premises licence or his 
personal licence is suspended.  

   
 (2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence.   
 
2 Any individual employed on the premises to conduct a security activity (within the meaning of section 

paragraph 2(1)(a) of schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
3 The admission of children under 18 to any film exhibition must be restricted in accordance with any 

recommendation made by the film classification body specified in section 4, Video Recordings Act 1984 
unless the licensing authority notifies the holder of the premises licence that recommendations made by 
the licensing authority must be followed instead. 

 
4 (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to 
crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children– 

 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to– 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee 
to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or 
discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as 
defined in section 159 of the Act); 

 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward 
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less; 

 
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting 
event, where that provision is dependent on– 

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 

 
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner. 

 

Page 16



5 The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth 
of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
6 The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is 

reasonably available. 
 
7 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification 

policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 
8 The responsible person shall ensure that– 

 
(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready 
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following 
measures– 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

 
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures 

 

Page 17



Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 
 
1 Toughened glass is to be used during operating hours as appropriate. 
 
2 Any existing CCTV system will continue to operate during the additional hours.   
 
3 The premises supervisor will actively participate in and support the local Pubwatch scheme (where one is 

in existence). 
 
4 Promote responsible drinking to all customers. 
 
5 No adult entertainment (paid for by the company of a nude physical nature) is permitted at these 

premises. 
 
6 In the event of transmission of any recognised international sporting event (eg Olympics) which falls 

outside the current permitted hours on the premises licence to permit the activity commencing one hour 
before the start of the event and ending the one hour after the end of the event, details of the activity to be 
notified to the Licensing Authority and to the Police in writing 14 days beforehand.  The event will not 
proceed if the Police serve, 7 days beforehand, written notice on the designated premises supervisor. 

 

 

 

Page 18



Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
 
1 The bar to close 30 minutes after the last permitted time for the sale of alcohol. 

 

 

Page 19



Annex 4 – Plans 

 
 
Drawing number 5892/171891/190 dated 20/12/04 

 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



 

Appendix 5 

 
 

Licensing Act 2003 
Schedule 12 

 Part A Regulation 33,34 
 

Premises Licence 
 

Premises Licence Number 13/01475/LAPRE 

 
Part 1 – Premises Details 

 

Postal address of premises, or if none, ordnance survey map reference or description, including Post 
Town, Post Code 
 

Hollywood Bowl 
Woodside Leisure Park 
North Orbital Road 
Watford 
WD25 7JZ 
 

Telephone number 01923 682929 

 

Where the licence is time limited the dates 

 
From 23 January 2014 

 

Licensable activities authorised by the licence and the times the licence authorises the carrying out of 
licensable activities 

 
On and off-premises alcohol sales Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 10:00 - 23:30 
 Thursday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 10:00 - 22:30 
 
Exhibition of a Film Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 10:00 - 00:00 
 Thursday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
 Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
 St David's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
 St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:00 
 Burns Night 10:00 - 01:00 
 Halloween 10:00 - 01:00 
 Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:00 
 Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:00 
 
 

Page 53



 

Indoor Sporting Event Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 10:00 - 00:00 
 Thursday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
 Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
 St David's Day 10:00 - 01:00 
 St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:00 
 Burns Night 10:00 - 01:00 
 Halloween 10:00 - 01:00 
 Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:00 
 Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:00 
 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:00 
 
Late Night Refreshment Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 23:00 - 00:00 
 Thursday, Friday, Saturday 23:00 - 01:00 
 Valentine's Day 23:00 - 01:00 
 St David's Day 23:00 - 01:00 
 St Patrick's Day 23:00 - 02:00 
 Bank Holidays 23:00 - 01:00 
 Burns Night 23:00 - 01:00 
 Halloween 23:00 - 01:00 
 Christmas Eve 23:00 - 02:00 
 Boxing Day 23:00 - 02:00 
 27, 28 and 30 December 23:00 - 02:00 
 
Performance of Recorded Music Mon, Tues, Wed, Thurs, Fri, Sat, Sun 00:00 - 00:00 
 
On 31 December the licensable activities may be conducted until the start of the licensable activities on 1 
January, and then to the conclusion of those licensable activities 
 

The opening hours of the premises 

 
Opening times of premises Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday 10:00 - 00:30 
 Thursday, Friday, Saturday 10:00 - 01:00 
 Sunday 10:00 - 00:00 
 Valentine's Day 10:00 - 01:30 
 St David's Day 10:00 - 01:30 
 St Patrick's Day 10:00 - 02:30 
 Bank Holidays 10:00 - 01:30 
 Burns Night 10:00 - 01:30 
 Halloween 10:00 - 01:30 
 Christmas Eve 10:00 - 02:30 
 Boxing Day 10:00 - 02:30 
 27, 28 and 30 December 10:00 - 02:30 
 

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and / or off supplies 

 
Alcohol is sold for consumption on and off the premises. 
 

Page 54



 

Part 2 
 

Name, (registered) address, telephone number and email (where relevant) of holder of premises licence 

 
The Original Bowling Company Ltd 
Focus 31 
North Wing 
Cleveland Road 
Hemel Hempstead 
HP2 7BW 
 
Tel: 01442 840200 

 

Registered number of holder, for example company number, charity number (where applicable) 

 
05163827 

 

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where the premises licence 
authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 
Abigail Harris 
 
 
 
 

 

Personal licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by designated premises 
supervisor where the premises licence authorises for the supply of alcohol 

 
Personal Licence Number: PER-0721 
Licensing Authority: Hertsmere Borough Council 

Page 55



 

Annex 1 – Mandatory conditions 

 
 
1 (1) No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:  
    

 (a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises 
licence, or 

   
 (b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a premises licence or his 

personal licence is suspended.  
   
 (2) Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who 

holds a personal licence.   
 
2 Any individual employed on the premises to conduct a security activity (within the meaning of section 

paragraph 2(1)(a) of schedule 2 to the Private Security Industry Act 2001) must be licensed by the 
Security Industry Authority. 

 
3 The admission of children under 18 to any film exhibition must be restricted in accordance with any 

recommendation made by the film classification body specified in section 4, Video Recordings Act 1984 
unless the licensing authority notifies the holder of the premises licence that recommendations made by 
the licensing authority must be followed instead. 

 
4 (1) The responsible person shall take all reasonable steps to ensure that staff on relevant premises do 

not carry out, arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises. 
 
(2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or 
substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of alcohol for 
consumption on the premises in a manner which carries a significant risk of leading or contributing to 
crime and disorder, prejudice to public safety, public nuisance, or harm to children– 

 
(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or 
encourage, individuals to– 

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or 
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible 
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or 
(ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise); 

 
(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee 
to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic (other than any promotion or 
discount available to an individual in respect of alcohol for consumption at a table meal, as 
defined in section 159 of the Act); 

 
(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward 
the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less; 

 
(d) provision of free or discounted alcohol in relation to the viewing on the premises of a sporting 
event, where that provision is dependent on– 

(i) the outcome of a race, competition or other event or process, or 
(ii) the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring; 

 
(e) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the 
vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or 
glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable 
manner. 

 

Page 56



 

5 The responsible person shall ensure that no alcohol is dispensed directly by one person into the mouth 
of another (other than where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of a 
disability). 

 
6 The responsible person shall ensure that free tap water is provided on request to customers where it is 

reasonably available. 
 
7 (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder shall ensure that an age verification 

policy applies to the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol. 
 
(2) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of 
age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served 
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark. 

 
8 The responsible person shall ensure that– 
 

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the 
premises (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready 
for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following 
measures– 

(i) beer or cider: ½ pint; 
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and 
(iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml; and 

 
(b) customers are made aware of the availability of these measures 

 

Page 57



 

Annex 2 – Conditions consistent with the Operating Schedule 

 
 
1 Toughened glass is to be used during operating hours as appropriate. 
 
2 Any existing CCTV system will continue to operate during the additional hours.   
 
3 The premises supervisor will actively participate in and support the local Pubwatch scheme (where one is 

in existence). 
 
4 Promote responsible drinking to all customers. 
 
5 No adult entertainment (paid for by the company of a nude physical nature) is permitted at these 

premises. 
 
6 In the event of transmission of any recognised international sporting event (eg Olympics) which falls 

outside the current permitted hours on the premises licence to permit the activity commencing one hour 
before the start of the event and ending the one hour after the end of the event, details of the activity to be 
notified to the Licensing Authority and to the Police in writing 14 days beforehand.  The event will not 
proceed if the Police serve, 7 days beforehand, written notice on the designated premises supervisor. 

 

 

 

Page 58



 

Annex 3 – Conditions attached after a hearing by the licensing authority 

 
 
1 The bar to close 30 minutes after the last permitted time for the sale of alcohol. 
 
 
The following condition is suggested to be attached by officers at the hearing on 23 January 2014 
 
2 Notices shall be prominently displayed at all exits requesting patrons to respect the needs of local 

residents and leave the area quietly. 
 
This is also where any additional conditions imposed by the Licensing Sub-Committee will appear. 

 

Page 59



 

Annex 4 – Plans 

 
 
Drawing number 5892/171891/190 dated 20/12/04 

 

Page 60


	Agenda
	3 Application for Variation of Premises Licence: Hollywood Bowl, Woodside Leisure Park, North Orbital Road, Watford WD25 7JZ (13/01475/LAPRE)
	Appendix 1 - Location
	Appendix 3 - Existing licence
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Williams
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Welling
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Jackson
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Walker
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Balakumar
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Davies
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Stephens
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Brown
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Osborn
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Mannering
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Pargeter
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Hallett
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Dearman
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Jones
	Appendix 4 - Rep - D'Almaine
	Appendix 4 - Rep - Malkiewicz
	Appendix 5 - Draft licence


